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BOARD OF DIRECTORS TffiI

Wilson Kinyua, Choirmon

Mr. Wilson Kinyua is an economist and a banker. He holds a Ma$er of Arts degree in Development Economlcs

and a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics and Statistics from Williams College, Massachusetts, USA

and Makerere University, Uganda, respectively. Wilson has vast experience and expertise in public policy

formulation, and analysis and preparation of pOect implementation plans (PlP).

Dr. Nyambura Koigi (Mrs.) DBA, FKIM, l,iBS, MonogingDireaor

Nyambura has worked in various capacities in the financial sector in banking, business development and

l[L She has extensive training and experience in leadenhip, project management, product development,

ICT and micro finance, She started her career as a systems analyst. 5he is a Board member of the World

Savings Bank lnstitute (WSBI), and other Boards. Dr. Koigi holds a Doctorate in Business Administration

from the Nelson Mandela Metropolitan Unive6ity, South Africa, MBA in Strategic Management and a

Bachelors degree from the University of Nairobi, is a member ofthe ln$itute of Directors-Kenya and a

certified trainer in corporate governance.

Joseph Ki nyua, Eoord Member & Governnent of Kenyo Representotive

Mr. Kinyua is cunently the Permanent Secretary to Treasury. He holds Bachelors & Masters Degrees in

Economics and has wide experience in financial and public sector management having worked with the

University ofNairobi, the lnternational Monetary Fund and the Gntral Bank ofKenya. He is the 6overnment

representative from the Ministry 0f Finance.

Chiboli Shakaba, Board Member
Mr. Shakaba is a Harvard Alumni and Edward S. Fellow from the John Fiugerald Kennedy School of

Management. He holds both Bachelors in Political Science and a Master in Public Administration. He has

worked in the Public service since 1980 with experience from both the Provincial administration as well

as Central govemment. He is currently the Director of Administration, Ministry of Finance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS lffil

Thomas Mutugu, Board Member
Mr. Mutugu is a Lecturer at the University of Nairobi. He holds an MBA in Strategic Marketing and

Management from 5t. Louis University (USA). He is cunently a lead consultant for the Government ofthe

Republic of Rwanda on rebuilding and revitalization of the Rwandese Co-operative Movement. He also

advises the small scale manufacturers fnanced by the Kenya lndustrial Estates Limited and he is also the

Director ofAdvertising at Spread Marketing Advertising Agency.

Prof. Peter 0woko K'Obonyo, Boord Member

Professor Peter 0woko K0bonyo is an Associate Profesor (Management) at the Faculty of (ommerce,

University of Nairobi and the Deputy Principal, College of Humanities and Social Sciences, University

of Nairobi, He holds a PhD in Business Administration and he has held various important administrative

positions at the University of Nairobi ranging from Associate Dean Faculty of Commerce, to ftairman and

Seminars fuordinator.

Dr. lsabella Musyoka - Kamere (Mrs.), Boord Member

Dr. lsabella M. Musyoka-Kamere is a lecturer at the Department ofEducation Foundation, Kenyatta Unive6ity.

5he is a holder ofPhD (Education Foundation) and a Master of Education ofKenyatta University and Bachelor

of Education (Busines Education) of the University of Nairobi. She has authored many research papers

and presented authoritative seminar papers in her field ofexpertise. She brings to Postbank her wealth of

knowledge in management as well as her insightful approach to policy and administrative issues.

Mercy N. K. Mbijiwe (Mrs.), ComponySeoetory

Mn. Mbijiwe is an Advocate of the High fuurt of Kenya and holds a Bachelon of Law from the University of

Nairobiand a Diploma in Lawfrom the Kenya Schoolof Law. She is currently undertaking her Masters DEree

in Business Administration from Nazarene University. She is a (ertified Public Secretary of Kenya and also an

Associate Member of the ftartered lnstitute of Arbitrators.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM lt

Dr. Nyambura Koigi. Manoging Diector
Ann W. Karanja - Diector Eonking

Services

Felix Rerimoi . Heod Audit, Risk &

bmplione

Henry 0mumia. Head lnformation &

Communications Technology
Sylvester 0buon . Heod Retoil Bonking

Mercy Mbijiwe' Heod Legol &

Ad m i n istroti o n /Com p o ny 5 ec ret o ry

.?

'2

Charles Mbithi . r4g. Heod tinonce &

krounts

David Gatawa . Heod Morketing

ond Eusiness Developnent

t V
Vincent Makori . Monoger, 5t rotegir

Planning
(harles Karani . Prorurement Monoger

Unula Sabina 0yatsi. Heod Corporote

Bonking, MIS & Cord Services
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CORPORATE INFORMATION llil
Kenya Post 0ffice Savings Bank (Postbank) is established under an Act of Parliament (ap 493B ofthe laws of Kenya, and is domiciled in Kenya.

The addres ofthe registered office ofthe Bank is:

Postbank House

I 6'h Banda Street

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100,

NAIROBI.KENYA

Postbank is primarily engaged in the mobilization of savings and operates under the Kenya Post 0ffice Savings Bank Act (ap 4938. The Bank

offers other frnancial services such as remittance, collections and disbu6ement services.

Principa! Banks
Kenya Commercial Bank ltd

National Bank of Kenya Ltd

titibank, N.A.

Audifor
Auditor General

Kenya National Audit 0ffice

Principal Legal Advisers
J. Louis 0nquto Advocates

Kale Maina & Bundotich Advocates

Kimaru Kiplagat Advocates

Iherono & (0. Advocates

Kantai & Co. Advocates

Macharia-lilwangi Advocates
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT ll
I am honoured to present the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

of Kenya Post 0ffce Savings Bank

(Postbank) for the year ended Slst

December 2010. lt was a year of

achievement and progress in our

endeavour t0 enable Kenyans create

wealth through savings.

Mr. Wilson Kinyuo

Chairman

Economic
Overview

Kenya's economy performed better

in year 2010 than earlier anticipated.

The average growth rate in 2010

was 5.4 per rent compared to 2.1

per cent and 2.3 per cent in 2008

and 2009 respectively Real gross

d0mestir product at market prices is estimated to have inrreased by 6 1 per cent in

2010 compared t0 a growth 0f0.5 per cent in 2009 Ihe Financial sector continued

on an upward trend in 2010 expanding by 20 3 per cent compared to a growth of

7.1 per cent rn 2009 Ihe sertor (ontributed 1 1 
'1 per cent of GDP growth in 2010.

This strong re(overy was attributed to favourable weather (0nditi0ns, increased

liqurdity rn the banking system, and prudent macroeconomic management. These

factors encouraged a steady growth since the first quarter ofthe year leading t0 a

turnaround in se(tors 0fagriculture, tourism, electricity and water and a rebound in

most of the other secton.

Financial Secfor

Developments in the financial sector witnessed major movements in capital and

money markets. The NSE 20 share index rose from 2,805.0 in )009 lo 4,6298

at the end of 2010. The year also saw major rights isues by some institutions,

consequently, market capitalisation rose during the same period from Shs.831 83

billionto5hs.983.llbillion lnthemoneymarket,theaverageyieldrateson9l-day

treasury bills dropped significantly from an averaqe of /.25 per cent in 2009 to 1 .82

per (ent in 20'10. However, this reduction did not have much effect on the overdraft

and lending rates offered by the commercial banks which remained almost con(ant

at 2009 levels.

The banking sector was stable and maintained capital and liquidity ratios above

the minimum (atutory requirements. The consolidated positi0n for all commercial

banks and non bank financial institutions reflected an average 0f 41 9 percent

increase in profrtability in the year 0verall performance for commercial banks and

non bank financial institutions was rated strong during the year The performance of

Postbank also benefrted from the robust growth in the financial sector during 2010.

Challenges

Despite the improved performance in 20l0,Postbank faced severe challenges in

its operating environment. The main challenge t0 the Bank's profrtability has been

the legal framework under which it is in(orporated. Ihe Kenya Post Office Savings

Bank Act inhibits the ability of the Bank to offer credit and other related market

led frnancial services. This r0nstraint impairs the relevance and competitiveness

of the Bank when viewed against a background of rising ru$omer expe(tations

from finanrial sector. The legai framework also places a heavy burden on the

bank's reporting requirements which are n0n r0re t0 i6 operations. Nevertheless,

discussions with the shareholders have continued 0n ways t0 overt0me these long

standing challenges.

Vear 2010 Resulfs

During the year, Postbank's gross income increased by )4./50/o from Kshs 1 919

billion in 2009 to Kshs 2 394 billion in 2010 The net inrome increased by 117.480k

from a los of Kshs.614.866 million in 2009 to a profit of Kshs.107.471 million in

2010. [ustomer deposits recorded a 28790/o increase from Kshs 10 462billion in

2009 to Kshs.13.474 billion in 2010.

Ihe marked improvement in gross income as well as net in(ome was due t0 attive

trading in Treasury bonds and cost reduction resulting from restructuring and

outsourcinq.

We are also pleased to report that for 15 consecutive years running Postbank

emerged top in Athletics in the Annual lnter-bank (hampionship and g0t t0 keep

the trophy for life loinrng the Tug ofWar where Postbank has been a [hampion for

long. I commend the stafffor the passion and commitment and sportsmanship they

displayed when representing the Bank at the Inter-bank games.

Corporafe Governance and
Social Responsibiliry

Postbank discharges its responsibility through a clear Board structure incorporating

rommittees for Audit and Risk, Human Resources, and Strategy and Development

t0 ensure focus on delivery of its responsibilities This structure ensures that the

Board provides timely guidance by payrng attenti0n t0 the critical areas of business

enabling it to capitalize 0n 0pportunities and mitigate risks. All [ommittees of the

Board are chaired by a non exerutive member ofthe Board. A few members ofthe

management team are incorporated in the Board fommittees as invitees to add

value to key Board decisions.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board is guided by its Charter. The Directors

are a ppoi nted by the Min istry of Fi na nce. The Boa rd consists of six d i recton: five non

exe(utive and one executive (the Managing Director) Whilst c0rp0rate governan(e

places responsibility for the overall business strategy, financial, 0perational and

compliance issues and policies to the Board, it has delegated authority t0 the

Managing Director to conduct the day to day business of Postbank.

ln addition to mobilizing savings for national detlel0pment, Postbank also supports

c0mmunity driven social development initiatives aimed at treating situati0ns

conducive for individuals, groups and the rommunity's improvement, particularly

the vulnerable, socially and economically marginalized segments of our society.

In 2010, Postbank performed this role in the areas ofhealth and education. Some

of the benefrciaries of Postbank's (orporate Social Responsibility were educational

institutions (district education days and other planned forums) and Boda boda

youth gr0ups through the Bank's vibrant frnancial literacy pr0grams, victims of a

traffc accident that occuned in Murang'a, blood donati0n by stafft0 the government

blood-bank and supp0rt 0fStudent in Free Enterprise (SIFE) Kenya t0 pr0mote y0t]th

entrepreneurship proqrams.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

Risk Management

While the Bank is not cunently regulated under the Banking Ao, it conducts its

business in accordance with Central Bank of Kenya prudential guidelines. Postbank

makes concerted efforts to approach her business from a risk penpective while

developing new products and canying out her busines. Postbank has embraced risk

based management t0 ensure proactive identification, mitigation and appreciation

ofall risks affecting the busines.

The Future

ln 2010, Postbank celebrated its 
'100 yean of wealth creation through savings. Ihe

period ahead is full ofopportunities for Postbank. Due t0 its wlde footprint in the

country, Postbank, is well placed t0 contribute towards achievement of the Vision

2030 goals of improving access to finance and raising savings rate to over 30%.

Even as we pursue the reform agenda to enable Postbank to offer other financial

services, savings mobilization will remain a key responsibility ofthe Bank. In this

(0nnection, we are going to build on synergies with partners and also progress the

reform agenda that is ongoing.0ur resolve is to be m0re (ustomer-(entric and focus

llil
on offering market-led solutions to the needs of customers. We are also going to

optimize asset utilization and leverage on efficiencies resulting from the new service

delivery system.

Appreciation

Finally, I would like to convey my sincere thanks t0 the Government, our esteemed

cust0me6 and busines partners for their continued support. I particularly would

like to thank the management and staff for their dedication which resulted in the

in(rease in customer deposits and firmly supporting the restructuring ofthe Bank. ln

conclusion, let me applaud my fellow Directors for their continued support, timely

guidance and decision making.

We look forward to working together towards meeting and exceeding our customers

and shareholder's expe(tation in the coming year.

CHAIRMAN ......
DATE: MARCH,201

znr/'
ffit{t

1/
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MANAG I NG DI RECTOR'S STATEMENT lll

Financial
Performance
Against this background and

in line with our objective of mobilising savings and giving Kenyans 0pportunities

to save and t0 create value for the benefit of all stakeholden, the Bank posted a

growth of 1'1770 in profrts to close at Kshs.107.471M. (ustomer deposits increased

by 28.790k compared t0 11.98% in 2009 demonstrating our commitment t0

continu0us growth ofthis qovernment asset.

Cenfennia I celebrations
Postbank marked her centennial annivenary during the year 2010. 5ince 1 9l 0 when

savings services were started in Kenya, the product range has been diversified from

the one product through the passbook t0 an array ofsavings produ(ts, remittance

and payment servi(es. Deposits have equally grown from the frrst Rupee deposited

tobillionsofshillingscurrentlyheldindepositsinover13millionsavingsaccounts.

The branch network has equally expanded over time to over 1,340 touch points

usinq ATMs, Point ofSale IPOS] Terminals, own branches and agent lorati0ns.

Transformafion
With the full mainstreaming of a New Busines Model in 2009 which resulted to

automati0n in all functional areas ofthe Bank, there was a need to realign human

resource in view of the re-engineered proceses. Ihe Bank offered a Voluntary Early

Retirement Scheme (VERS) which attracted 300 staffwho voluntarily left the Bank

in first quarter of 2010 To this end, the Bank conducted skills inventory review

which was used to deploy the remaining staffwithin various functional units. Vacant

positi0ns were (0mpetitively filled through external and internal advertisements. To

further deepen the staff rationalizati0n, the organizational grading structure was

reviewed resulting to a leaner structure.

Capacify Building
During the yeaI the bank focused on talent development. Staff were trained in

Busines (ontinuity after the VERS to undertake their new roles. Other capacity

building programs and leadership development were undertaken with a view t0

enhance staff skills, capa(ities and capabilities.

The above a(tivities have signifrcantly contributed t0 in(reased (0mpetitiveness,

enhanced (orporate image and better service delivery to the customers. Postbank

als0 0perates under performance (0ntra(ting guidelines and this has been

entrenched through Balanced Score [ard performance management system.

In re(ognition of this transformation effort, the Government through the Office

of the Head of (ivil Service and Secretary t0 the (abinet recoqnised Postbank as

a case study on successful transformation in 2010. Towards this end, Postbank

made presentations on successful implementation of transformation t0 160 State

[0rp0rations through the Transformation Leadership proqram at Kenya Institute 0f

Administration.

Branch Expansion and Agency Banking
Postbank has always operated through Agents to reach the unbanked. ln late 2009,

the Bank started appointing retail outlets at the vlllage level to handle business on

its behalf ihe agency banking model accelerates the expansion ofoutreach to the

villages at mjnimal cost mitigating the costs ofestablishing large scale brick and

mortar branches. Proximity banking is at the heart of savings banking.

Postbank received a grant from the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation through the

World Savings Bank institute in 2010 to accelerate the establishment ofagents in

majority of villages in Kenya By the close of the year the Bank operated through

1,340 touch points that include 94 branches,880 ATlr/s and over 350 agent

locations. Through these agents, customers are able to make cash deposits, cash

withdrawals, balance enquiries as well as origination of account opening. This way,

the Bank continues to play her role in financial inclusion and that way r0ntribute

towards meeting some ofthe qoals ofthe Vision 2030

Business Development
ln 2010, we c0ntinued in our commitment to develop innovative products and

services that meets the needs ofour customers as outlined in our mision. During the

year, mobile SMS Banking service was upgraded to support additional services like

deposit and withdrawal services in a new service known as PataCASH In addition,

the Bank introduced a web-based money transfer service known as Postbank Xpress

which is a precedent in this service segment in Kenya.

Aufomafion
The Bank's new delivery platform that uses theTeller Point ofSale (P05) termrnal

resulted in increased efficiency in procesing transa(ti0ns in all the branches and

agent lo(ations and siqnificant cost saving has been realised. Postbank is the

pioneer in Kenya frnancial sector in using Ieller P05 terminals. ln recognition of this

innovati0n that benefits service delivery, the [omputer Society of Kenya recognised

the Ieller P05 innovation citing Postbank as "The Best Bank in the Application of

Paperless Business Environment in 20,l0'i

Embracing chang€ for results
lmplementing transformation and embracing Result Based Management calls for

setti ng of short term goa ls that assist i n the achievement ofthe an nual and the long

term goals. ln 2010, Postbank implemented two waves of Rapid Results Initiatives

(RRls) focusing on five thematic areas of Business Growth and Sustainability,

Financial Reporting and Profitability, Enhancing (orporate lmage, Restructuring and

Human Resources and Productivity and Restructuring. Ihis resulted in the launch of

new services and products that meet the ever chanqing customen needs.

As Postbank celebrated the remarkable results achieved through the RRl, the Bank

(ontinues to provide Kenyans with diversified, affordable, and secure financial

services through rutting edge technology and highly wel(0me the strategi(

initiatives lhat the government is bringing on board to make Postbank more

Dr. Nyamburo Koigi

Managing Direcfor

I am pleased to present to you

the Bankt annual report and

financial statements for the

year 2010, The macroeconomic

environment witnessed a

rebound with improved GDP

growth. The inflationary

environment was relatively low.

There was a slight weakening of

the Kenyan shilling. Interest rates

on bonds declined in tandem

with the measures the fentral

Bank of Kenya had put in place.
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MANAG ING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

competititle. The RRI initiative was implemented with the assistance from the Public integrated services within the East African region.

SectorTransformation Department, Office of the Prime Minister.

Performance Confracfs and
ISO Certificafion
Ihe 2010 Performance Contact between the Chairman and the Managing Director

was signed on December 29th 2009. The Performance [ontract was cascaded to

all levels and performance was monitored again$ the agreed benchmarks and

reported throughout the year as per the Contract with the government.

Ihe Government rated Postbank's performance for 20,10 as"G00D'l

0n service quality, Postbank continued to adhere to the service quality requirements

oflS0 9001:2000 which was attained in December 2007 till the end ofyear 2010.

Ihe Bank was again re-certifred by SGS Kenya in November 2010 and hence

attaininq lS0 9001: 2008 standard. The Bank continues to ensure quality service to

external and internal customers as outlined in the Service Charter and quality policy.

Srrategic nefworking
Postbank continued to maintain strategic relationships with key instituti0ns such as;

Wodd Savings Bank Institute (WSBI)

WSBI is the largest association ofsavings and retail banks in the w0rld. lt gives the

savings banks a platform to network with each other

The Managing Director continues to be one of the members of the WSBI Board

representing the African savings banks. The Bank also continued t0 maintain

relationship with the WSBI through the various meetings and workshops. Through a

globally competitive process, WSBI awarded Postbank a tender to support Lesotho

PostBank in implementing an automated service delivery platform and develop a

new product. Thls consultancy is funded byWSB|/Bill & ltilelinda 6ates Foundation.

YouthSave Canada

The Master(ard Foundation entered into a partnenhip with a (0ns0rtium 0f

organizations to conduct a landmark, global research initiative that will test how t0

sustainably deliver savings services to low-income youth in the developing world.

The 5 year project focuses on four countries namely; Colombia, Ghana, Kenya and

Nepal, Postbank representing Kenya was selected through a (0mpetititle process and

received a grant that is almed at researching and designing a product that targets

the youth.

Association of Savings Bank

in East Africa (ASBEA)

Thls is an Asociation of Savings Banks in East Africa which enables the savings

banks to network. The Bank held various forums in the year 2010 through

trainings and workshops meant to develop synergies in product development and

busines experiences. The Managinq Director was elected the [hairman of ASBEA

in November 2010. The ASBEA members are working towards a converqence and

til
Financial Sector DeepenlngTrust (enya IFSD] and other Partnerships

Postbank continued to partnerwlth FSD in rarious areas. FSD was a key partner

in the organisation re-alignmgt prOieclytrft ws.inplemented in 2010 and an

organisation review done by the elrd of 2d10. .' ,l :' tt !.,
Postbank continues to also have busines partndshi['of munral benefits with

various local and international firms from both the private and public sector.

0utlookfor 2011

In 2011, we will focus 0n capa(ity building and consolidating our investment

in information and communication technology. We further continue in the

restru(turing efforts ofthe Bank, Postbank is now well positi0ned to move forward

and take opportunities leveraging 0n these inve(ments and initiatives and the new

dispensationthatwill beinplacein20ll The0utl00kf0r20llthereforeremains

positive.

Conclusion
ln conclusion, I take this opportunity t0 express my gratitude t0 0ur (ust0me6, and

business partnen for their ever present support and continued confidence and trust

in Postbank. I thank the Board of Directors for their ovenight and guidance given

in 2010. Lastly, I am grateful to my colleagues and the entire staffofthe Bank for

their dedication and devotion that enabled us to deliver these excellent financlal

results. Iogether, we shall continue to live our purpose of providing accessible and

sustainable banking and frnancial services, through innovative delivery system for

wealth creation to the benefit ofour customers and other stakeholders. Ihis way, we

will indeed attain 0ur goal ofbeing a Bank of(hoice.

Thank you and God bless.

"4ry
Dr. A. Nyambura Koigi, MBS

Managing Director.

g
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KEV ACH IEVEMENTS lII

The Computer Society of Kenya recognized Postbonk os

the best Bonk in the application of poperless business

environment in 2010 and for the introduction of the Point-
Of-Sale (POS) terminals that hove mode bonking easier.

The PS Ministry of lnformotion ond Communicotion Dr
Bitonge Ndemo, presenting the Computer Society of Kenyo

top trophy to MD Dr. Nyombura Koigi. Looking on ore H.

Omumio Heod/lCT and Sammy Kipsat, Manoger/Systems
Development.

Pace Setting in ICT

A Century of Wealth Creation

through Savings

For over o century, Postbonk has provided Kenyon\
with opportunities to save; millions of Kenyons and
others in the diaspora have been impocted by the
services Postbank offers.

Postbank making a Difference

in Africa Saving Eanks

Postbank Managing Director, Dr. Nyombura Koigi and
WSBI's Chris De Noose exchange documents during the

commencement of Lesotho Project funded by Bill & Melindo
Gotes Foundation through the World Saving lnstitute.

g
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KEV ACH lEVEMENTS........ (Continued)

The first bank where Kenyons of Africon origin had bank occounts
woy back in 1911, lst bonk to introduce Home safes, first cash-to-cosh
remittonce service in Kenya in 1995, first bank with teller Point-Of-Sale

Terminol and paperless banking among other achievements. Through

this heritoge we have tronsformed people's lives, helping them sove,

invest ond grow and helping change their expectotion of what is possible.

H.E. Hon Mwoi Kibaki, C.G.H., M.P. the President of Kenya

cuts the cut during the Centenory Celebrations. Looking on ore

Hon. Somuel Poghisio Minister for lnformation & Communications
representing the Deputy Prime Minister & Minister for Finance Hon.

Uhuru Kenyatto, Postbank Choirman Wilson Kinyuo ond the MD Dr.

Nyombura Koigi.

Guests from all over the world attending the Postbonk

Centenary Celebrotions in 2010.

 .

I nter-ba n ks Sports Com petition
Postbonk hos remained a giont in the inter-banks competition winning top trophies over the
yeors in vorious sports.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FoR THE vEAR ENDED rlsT DECTMBER z0r0 ilt
The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and final draft ofaccounts for the year ended 31st December 2010.

Resulfs

The results for the year are as set out 0n page 20.

Direcfors
The Directors who served during the year to the date ofthis report were:-

Wilson Kinyua

Prof. Peter 0 Kbbonyo

Dr lsabella Musyoka Kamere

Thomas Mutugu

Joseph K. Kinyua

thiboli l. Shakaba

Dr.A. Nyambura Koigi

By order of the Board.

M. N. KAG|RT- MBUTWE (MR5)

(OMPANY SECRETARY

Ihairman

Director

Director

Director

P5, Ministry of Finance

Alt. Representing

PS. Ministry of Finance

Managing Director

Re-appointed 04-01 -201 0

Re-appointed 04-01 -201 0

Re-appointed 04-01 -201 0

Re-appointed 21 I 121 2007

(eased on 2011212010

Appointed May 2004

Appointed 03-1 2-2005

Re-appointed0l -07-2008

\-
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STATEMENT OF D I RECTORS RESPONS I BI LITI ES llil
at the end ofthe fnancial year and ofthe operating results for that year. lt also requires the Dire(tors t0 ensure the Eank keeps properac(ounting records, which disclose with

reasonable arcuracy, at any time, the financial position ofthe Bank.They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Bank.

Nothing has come t0 the attention 0fthe Dire(tors t0 indicate that the Bank will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement.

(HARMAN: fr4"A@lk-
MANAGINGDIRE(TOR: .......f.......
DATE: MAR(H,201 1

g
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CO RPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEM ENT TI$I
Postbank is committed to the standards 0f corporate governan(e as set by the

government for the public sector from time to time and the Central Bank of Kenya

0n respe(tive services offered by Postbank.

The Board ofDireoors is responsible for the long term strategic directi0n f0r profitable

growth ofthe Bank while being accountable to the shareholder for ensuring that

Postbank complies with the law and the highest $andards ofcorporate governance

and busines ethics.

with regulatory requirement, the (ommittee comprises non-exe(utive members

of the Board who are independent of the day-to-day management of the Bankl

operations. The Head of lnternal Audit reports to the Audit (ommittee functionally.

The Committee deals with all matters relating to the finanrial statements and

internal control and risk management.

The Committee was ronstituted in 2010 and held two (2) meetings during the year

under review.

The Directors attach great importance to the need t0 (0ndu(t the busines and

operations of Postbank with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted

(orporate practice and endorse the internationally developed principles of good

(orporate governan(e.

Board of Direcfors
Ihe Board is made up of directon of whom 5 are non-executives including the

Chairman. Directon are given appropriate and timely information so that they

can maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial, operational and

compliance requirements. The day-to-day running of Postbank has been delegated

to the Managing Director. The Board retains responsibility for establishing and

maintaining the internal control over the strategic, financial, operational and

compliance isues. The Board is responsible of ensuring succession planning and

c0mmencement 0f the recruitment of the Managinq Director.

Board Meetings
The Board 0f Direct06 meet 0n quarterly basis or as required monitoring the

implementation of Postbank's planned strategy and reviewing it in conjunction

with its financial performance. Specific reviews are also undertaken 0n operati0nal

isues and future planning. At the end ofeach financial year, the Board reviews itself,

Board Committees, Managing Director and Senior Management staffagainst targets

that were agreed to at the beginning ofthe year.

Ihe Board held five (5) Meetings which comprised ofspecial Meetings during the

year under review.

Board Commiffees
The Board has created three Principal committees which meet regularly under well

defined and materially delegated terms of reference set by the Board.

Sfrafegy and Developmenf Board
Commiffee
This [ommittee meets quarterly and it is responsible for the formulation of the

Bank's strategy, review and approval ofproduct offering and strategic alliances.

The (ommittee was constituted in 201 0 and held two (2) meetings during the year

under review.

Audif and Risk Commifree
The Audit and Risk Committee meets quarterly, or as required. ln accordance

Staff Board Commiffee
This [ommittee meets quarterly to review human resource policies, approval of all

matters that relate to staffand to make suitable recommendations to the Board on

Senior Management appointments.

The [ommittee met frve (5) times during the year under review.

Code of Efhics
Postbank is committed to the Public Officers lntegrity and Ethics Act 2003 and Kenya

Anti-Conuption and Economic Crimes Ao 2003.

Communicafion wifh Shareholder and
ofh€r Stakeholders
Postbank is (ommitted t0 ensuring that the shareholder and the Parliament are

provided with full and timely information about its performance. This is usually

done through the distribution ofthe Bankl quarterly Repo(s to the Inspe(torate 0f

State Corporations and Ministry of Finance and specifically the Annual reports to the

Clerk of the Parliament for distribution to the Memben of Parliament. Postbank is

in compliance with its obligations under the KP05B Act, State Corporations Act and

[entra I Ba nk of Kenya g uidelines relating t0 remitta nces services together with 0ther

Guidelines issued there-under by the government.

Postbank as a player in the qlobal economy, participated in a study on

"Corporote Governonce and Access to Finance" as one of

the case studies demonstrating the linkage between good corporate governanre

and access to finance. Postbank represented Africa in this World Savings Bank

lnstitutel study (overing Asia-Pacific, Latin America, Europe and African Regions.

Direcfors' Emolumenfs and Loans
The aggregate amount of em0luments paid to Non -executive Dirertors for services

rendered during the year 2010 is Kshs 2,096,648 (2009 - Kshs 2,386,264). There

were n0 l0ans t0 sitting N0n-executive Directors at any time during the year.
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CO RPORATE GOVERNAN CE STATEM ENT ....... ( Continued) lffil
Board and Board Commiffees Affendance
I'he followinq table gives the record of Postbank's Board and its Committee Meetings for the year ended December 31st 2010.

NO. OF MEETING HELD

MEETINGS ATTENDED

WI6ON (INYUA

THIBOLI SHAKABA

THOMAS MUTUGU

PROF. PETER K'OBONYO

DR. ISABELLA KAMERE

A. NYAMBURA KOIGI

(HAIRMAN

224

N/A

224

)24

5

4 N/A

5

N/A

5

3

5

N/A

N/A

N/A

NiA

4

24

4

mMANAGING DIRECTOR

DAIE MARIH, 201 1

MAIN
BOARD

AUD!T
COMMITTEE

STRATEGYAND
DEVELOPMENT

COMMITTEE

STAFF BOARD
COMMITTEE

SPECIAL
BOARD

Cl
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSI BI LITV STATEMENT

Like many other organizations, one major challenge that Postbank faces in her

philanthropic adivities is that the financial needs of our society surpass what we

can offeras an organization. Forthis reas0n, partiripation in community affairs is not

restricted to financial assistance but also includes direct staff involvement in publi(

and civil isues. Through this, we share our time, skills and knowledge t0 improve

and transform the lives of 0the6 As a continuing commitment by businesses to

behave ethically and rontribute t0 e(0n0mir development, while improving the

quality of life ofthe society, we believe that people are bankable irrespective oftheir

economic level.

Job Shadowing
Durlnqtheyear20l0,Postbankprovided2l4studentsan0pp0rtunityt0 visitand

learn about the Ba nk's operations. The Ban k offers opportun ities t0 secondary s(h001

students t0 experience real work environment through a job-shadowing program.

Working with Junior Achievement Kenya, Postbank allows (udents to spend their

time in the Bank's offices and intera(t with staff in the work environment. At the end

ofthe program, students appre(iate what goes on in the actual industry working

environment.

0ur four areas offocus are Education, Health, environment and emergency response.

ln the year 20'10, we focused our (5R efforts to the area ofEducation and Health in

order to have accountability and an overall impact on society. M0st 0fthese activities

were carried out in locations ofour business in order to redure the operati0nal tost

of these efforts.

Education
Support in this area aims at rreating a solid foundation for responsible future citizens.

The bank invested in frnancial literacy programs mainly for the development of the

y0uth through district education days and other forums whenever it was possible.

Some of the forums thal the bank offered her time and human resources were the

Kajiado, Kiambu and Ruiru District [ducation days. ln such meetings, the bank staff

offered savings education to secondary school students, their teachers, parents

and other parti(ipants. This was meant t0 inculcate a culture of savlngs for a better

economic society in the future.

*.J

Enfrepreneu rship and Leadership
Developmenf
Postbank also supported the Students in Free Enterprise (SIFE) Kenya during their

8th annual University Student entreprentlrial national (0mpetitions held in Nairobi.

This initiative was also aimed at pr0m0ting a savings culture among the youth in

addition to pr0moting a generation of entrepreneurs and business leaders thus

creating a better world for all.

Postbank also supported SIFE in its leadership program through frnancial support of

the 2010 leadership development program.

I'*fl

Students being exploined how the Postbank Cash-Xprus <ord works on o feller

Point of Sole (P0S)teminol during the 2010 job shadowing programne in

the bonk.
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CO RPO RATE SOCIAL RES PO N S I B I L ITV STATEM ENT....... ( Conf i n ued)

Financial Literacy
0ne ofthe objectives of Postbank is t0 in(ulate a savings culture among Kenyans.

Towards meeting this objective, frnancial literacy programs we offered through road

shows in many parts of the country as part of Postbank's [entenary (elebrations

with the theme of"A Century ofWealth Creation Through Savings'l

lrl
Health
This covers areas of pri ma ry hea lth, ca re and support for orpha ns, vul nera ble child ren

and disadvantaged elderly. In 2010, the Bank organized an opportunity for her staff

t0 d0nate blood to the government's blood bank through a n0n-gotlernmental

0rganization that facilitated the exercise. To Postbank, this is an imp0rtant attivlty

that is carried out every year where all memben of staff are encouraged and

supported with the reqrlired resources for successful (0ntributi0n to a noble course.

The Bank also paid out medical expenses and offered some financial support to the

victims ofan accident that sadly occurred during an offrcial event in Murang'a.

Ihe Bank wil continue in corporate social responsibility engagements in 201 1 in

line with 0ur corporate social responsibility policy.

/-r/
CHAIRMAN W-

/
MANAGINGDIREIIOR'7/,,W

DATE: MARCH, 201 1

z
"z
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Tclcphonc: +254 20 -1423-10

Fax: 1254 20 34441t2

Irnail: cag(rqkenao.go.kc
Wcbsitc: www.kcnao.go.kc

I have audited the accompanying flnancial statemenr 0f Kenya Post Offrce Savings

Bank set out 0n pages 20 t0 41 which r0mprise the statement of financial position

as at 3l De(ember 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement

of changes in reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

a summary of significant a(counting policies and 0ther explanat0ry information,

in accordance with the provisions 0f Artirle 229 of the [0nstituti0n of Kenya and

Section l4 ofthe Public Audit Art, 2003. I have obtained all the information and

explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were ne(essary f0r the

purpose ofthe audit

Managemenf's Responsibilify for the
Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these

financial statements in ac(0rdance with the International Financial Reporting

Standards and for such internal controls as management determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

mistatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Management is also responsible for the submission ofthe frnancial statements in

accordance with the provisions ofSedi0n 13 0fthe Publi( Audit Act,2003

Auditor-Cene ral's Responsi bi I ity

My responsibility is to expres an independent opinion on the financial statements

based on the audit and report in arrordan(e with the provisions of Section l5 of

the Public Audit Art, 2003. The audit was rondu(ted in ar(ordanre with the

International Standards on Auditing. Ihose standards require compliance with

ethical requirements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures t0 0btain audit evidence about the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's ludgement, including the asses5ment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant

t0 the entitys preparation and fair presentation ofthe frnancial statements in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the (ir(umstanres, but n0t f0r the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal controls.

Basis for Oualified Opinion

1. Bank and Cash Balance

i. Included in the bank and cash balance of Kshs.715,728,22l as at 31

December 2010 is cash on hand frgure of Kshs.330,193,898 while the cash

(0unt certifrcates show a figure of Kshs.l)067 ,686 The resultant difference

of Kshs.8,126,212 between the two sets of records has n0t been re(on(iled

or explained. Further, the cash and bank balance is net of overdrawn bank

accou nts of Kshs.629,058,009 contra ry to 1 nternationa I Accou nti ng Standa rds

No.1 on presentation offrnancial statements which states that"an entity shall

not offset assets and liabilities, or income and expense(

ii. In addition, cash count confrrmation certificates relating to thirty three (33

branches totalling t0 Kshs 94,95/,017 were not availed for audit verifrcation.

iii Furthet the ba nk rer0n(iIiati0n statements as at 3 l December 201 0 refl ects

un reconci led a nd unexpla i ned debit a nd cred it bal ances of Kshs 1 92,2i8,206

and Kshs,225,288,567 respectively, which have been outstanding since

2008. In addition, the bank reconciliation statements include openrng

balan(es am0unting t0 Kshs.67,052,i94 whose analysis was n0t provided f0r

audit verifrcation. In the rirrumstanres, it has not been possible to ascertain

that the bank and cash balance of Kshs.715,728))/ is fairly stated as at 31

December 201 0

2. Accounts Receivables and Prepayments

As similarly reported in 2009, the ac(ounts rereivables and prepayments balance

of Kshs 4,858,642,949 includes Kshs 1,136,696,132 owed by Postal Corporation of

Kenya and Kshs 405,2i1,629 by the defunct Kenya Posts and Telecommunicatlons

(orporation and accrued interest of Kshs.206,996,660 due from Postal [orporation

of Kenya. These debts have remained outstanding sincel 998.

It was further noted that the balance of Kshs.4,858,642,949 includes

Kshs.550,879,568 being staff loans and Kshs.9,649,1 37 relating to directon loans.

P O. Ilox 30084 - 00 I 00
NAIROBI

Dalc...................................-..

THE KENYA NATIONALAUDIT OFFICE

REPORT OFTHE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENVA POST OFFICE SAVINGS BANK FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51 DECEMBER 2O1O

Report on fhe Financial Sfafemenfs An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness 0fac(ounting estimates made by Management, as well as

evaluating the overall presentati0n ofthe frnancial statements.

I believe the audit evidence obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis

for my audit opinion.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL ON FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE VIAR ENDED 51ST DECEMBER zOIO llll
However, the aging analysis for these loans was not provided and it was not clear

under what scheme the directors'loans were advanced.

In view ofthe foreg0ing, it has n0t been posible to ascertain the recoverability ofthe

long outstanding debts and accuracy of the accounts receivable and prepayments

balance of Kshs.4,858,642,949 as at 3 1 December 20 1 0.

3. Accounts Payables and Accruals

TheaccountspayablesandaccrualsbalanceofKshs.3,065,T'14,945asat31 December

2010 has been arrived at after setting off debit balances of Kshs.147,896,468

contrary t0 the requirements ofthe International Accounting Standards No.l on

presentation of f,nancial statements that disallow setting Off between assets and

liabilities unless required or permitted by the specific lnternational Accounting

Standard,

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects ofthe matter described above, the financial

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position ofthe

Bank as at 3lst December 20,10, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting

Standards and comply with the Kenya Post Office Savings Bank Act, (ap.493 B of

the laws of Kenya.

Edward R.0. 0uko

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

23 November 20 1 1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 51st DECEMBER 2010

20r0
Kshs

2009

715,728)27

1),008,361,7 49

9,741,025

29,998,825

4,858,642,949

1 53,998

1,838,043,820

686,648,241

1 0,075,32 1,034

309,741,025

29,635,549

3,224,177,634

1 53,998

999,317,356

1 3,41 5,060,359

3,065,714,945

7,891,980

,2,972,805

)20,002,615

17,031,U2,7U

2,429,027,989 1,3y),743,552

lGhs

AS5ETs

Bank and cash

Intlestments in Treasury Bills and Bonds

Funds on rall and short notice

0ther investments

Accounts Receivables & Prepayments

Defened aset

Property and Equipment

IIOTE

11

1)

t3

14

15

16

17

19,460,670,593 15,324,994,837

UABtUTtES

[ustomer Savings and Deposits

Accounts Payables & Accruals

Premium Bonds

GoK Pension Reserve Fund

Bearer Bonds

19

18

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:

(apital Reserves

Revenue Reserves

The Financial statements 0n paqes 1 8 to 41 were approved by the Board of Directors on

3Oth [4arch 201 1 and signed on its behalf by:

....) Director

.) Director

2,429,027,889 1,r8 ,74r,652

20

10,462,830,924

2,549,696,103

7,889,300

684,832,243

220,002,61 5

11e25l5rXSs

1,393,215,792

1,035,8r 2,097

471,N3,491

928,340,1 61

g
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STATEMEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE I NCOME
FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5IsT DECEMBER 2O1O lil

1{OTE

27

)9

)3

20t0

December

lGhs

1,788,152,317

(310,839,962)

2009

lhcember

lGhs

1,369,031,823

(180,600,092)

lnterest Income

lnterest Expense

Net lnterest lncome

Fees and (ommissions lncome

Fees and Commissions Expense

Net Fees and (ommissions lncome

Net Trading lncome

Foreign Exchanqe Income

0ther 0perating lncome

0perating income

lmpairment ioss on loans and advances

Employee benefits

0perating lease expenses

Depreciation & Amortization

0ther Expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit For the Period

1,477,312,355 1,188431,731

)1 432,282,854

(r 9,33s,420)

412,947,414

Q0,459,277

(26,91 3,889)

393,545,388

1,890,259,789 1,581,977,119

22

49,529,466

1 18,718,316

2,058,507,571

22,356,470

1,147,635,369

298,998,288

164,242,771

317,802,737

44,382,204

85,200,337

1,711,559,ffi

121,61 1,016

1,519,811,077

296,714,457

1 39,990,071

248,172,020

26

30

25

)4

107,471,936 (614,688,981)

107,471,936 (614588,981)

sGs AnnLral Report & F nanc ,rl 5talrmefts I 2010 11



STATEMENT OF CHANGES lN RESERVES ASAT5TsTDECEMBERZ0T0 lil

At I st January 2009

Prior yedr adjustment

Los for the year

At31stDecember2009

At lst January 2010

Profrt for the year

Revaluation reserve 201 0

At 31st December 2010

(apital

Reserves

lGhs.

471,403,491

1,035,812,W7

Capital reserve arose out ofrevaluation of land and buildings done in 2009 and approved by the Board of Directors in 2010.

471,403,491

471,401,491

92 1,8 r 2,301

1,393,215,792

Revenue

Reserves

Kshs.

1,54,116,042

(1,086,900)

(61 4,688,98 1 )

928,340, r 6 1

928,r40,161

107 ,471,936

IOTALS

lGhs.

2,015,519,533

(1,086,900)

(61 4,688,98 r )

1,399,7 43,652

1,199,743,652

107 ,471,936

921,812,301

2,429,027,89
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51sr DECEMBER 2010 lil
CASH FTOWS FROM OPERATING AOIVITIES

Proflt/(Loss) for the year

AdjustmenB for:-

Depreciation

Rental lncome

Dividend Received

Gain/ (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Appreciationi Diminution in value of quoted investments

0perating profiV(loss) before working capital changes

(lncrease)/ Decrease Accounts Receivables & Prepayments

Increase/(Decrease) in Accounls Payables & Accruals

Increase/(Decrease)[ustomer deposits and Premium Bonds

GoK Pension Reserve fund account

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM !NVESTING AflIVITIES

PurchaseiSale of Pr0perty and Equipment

Capital work in progress

Proceeds from sale of Property & Equipment

Rental income

Dividend Received

Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH TTOWS FROM FINAT{(ING AfiIVITIES

Net cash flows fiom financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

[ash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (Note28)

2010

lGhs

107 ,471,936

164,242,771

(2 1,788,738)

(46,698)

(363,276)

2009

lGhs

(614,688,981)

139,990,071

(21,154,679)

(8,835)

(634,700)

6,075

249,515,y)5

(r,634,46s,31s)

516,018,842

2,952,224,808

(361,8s9,438)

Q96fln,ynl

358,696,471

(477,077,709)

1,120,424,569

437,996,298

1,721,434,892

(81J49,62t)

21,788,738

46,698

943,598,530

(55,663,334)

9,420,83)

634,700

21,154,629

8,835

(59,314,191) 124,44,,3331

1,662,120,701

I 1,071,71 0,300

12,733,831,001

919,154,293

10,152,556,007

11,071,710,300

g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE VEAR ENDED 5lsr DECEMBER 2010

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Kenya Post Office Savings Bank is established under an Acl ofParliament CAP 493 B

ofthe laws of Kenya, and is domiciled in Kenya. The address ofthe registered office

of the Bank is:

Postbank House

'16'h 
Banda Street

P 0 Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi, Kenya

2. BASIS OF PREPARAIION

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (lFRSs). The consolidated financial statements were

authorized for issue by the Board ofDirectors on March 201 1.

b) Basis of measurement

Ihe financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International

Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS) based on the historical (ost (0nventi0n as

modified by the reva I uation of property, ava ilable-for sale fi nancial assets a nd held-

for-trading instruments.

c) Functional and presentati0n currency

Ihese flnancial statements are presented in Kenya shillings (Kshs), which is the

company s fun(tional currency.

Items included in the frnancial statements are measured using the currency of

primary economic environment in which the entity operates i.e. Kenya shillings.

d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and asumptions that affect the

application of accountinq policies and the reported am0unts 0f assets, liabilities,

incomes and expenses. Artual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlyinq assumpti0ns are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions t0

ac(0unting estimates are recoqnized in the year in which the estimate is revised and

in any future periods affected,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTIOES

Revenue Recognition

Income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(i) lnterest

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive

lncome using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate

that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through

the expected lrfe ofthe financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter

period) to the carrying amount ofthe financial aset or liability. The effective interest

rate is established 0n initial re(ognition ofthe financial asset and liability and is not

revised subsequently,

The calculation of the effective intere( rate includes all fees paid or received,

transa(ti0n costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part ofthe effective

interest rate. Transartion costs are incremental (0sts that are directly attributable t0

the acquisiti0n, issue or disposal ofa financial aset or liability.

Interest in(0me and expense presented in the statement ofcomprehensive income

i ncl ude:

interest 0n financial assets and liabilities at amortised (ost 0n an effettive

interest rate basis,

interest 0n available-for-sale inve(ment securities 0n an effettive interest

basis; and

interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered

to be incldental to the bank's trading operations and are presented together

with all other changes in the fair value oftrading assets and liabilities in net

tradinq income.

(ii) Fees and commission income

Fees and commision income that are integral t0 the effectitle interest rate 0n a

financial aset or liability are included in the measurement ofthe effective interest

rate. Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, are

recognised as the related services are performed.

(iii) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings

at the rates ruling at the transaction dates. Asets and liabilities at the statement

of financial positi0n date which are expressed in foreign currencies are translated

into Kenya shillings at rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. The

resulting realised and unrealised differences from conversion and translations are

recognised in the statement 0fcomprehensive income.
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NOIES IO IHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51sf DECEMBER 2010 ....(Continued) lilt
4. FINANCIAT ASSETS AND IIABITITIES

i) Recognition

The bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits and debt securities on the

date at which they are originated.

Purchases and sales offinancial assets are re(ognised on the trade date at which the

bank (ommits t0 purchase or sell the asset.

A frnancial aset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus (for an item not

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or los) transaction costs that are

dire(tly attributable t0 i6 a(quisition 0r issue

ii)Classification

The bank classifres its financial asets in the following categories: financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity

investments; and availableJor-sale financial assets. Management determines the

clasification 0f its investments at initial rec0gniti0n.

i) Financia! assets at fair value through plofit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: frnancial assets held for trading, and

those designated at falr value through profit or loss at inception. A financial

asset is dassified in th is category if acquired principally for the purpose of sel ing

in the short term or if so designated by management.

ii) Loans and receivables

Loons ond receivobles are non-derivative financial asets with fixed or

determinable payments that are not quoted in an a(tive market. They arise

when the bank provides money directly to a debtor with n0 intention 0f

trading the receivable. These include advances to staff, Visa credit to customers

and placements with other banks. Loans are initially measured at fair value

plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their

am0rtised cost using the effedive interest meth0d.

iii) Held-to-matudty

Held-to-moturity investments are n0n-derivative financial asets with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Bank's management has

the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, Were the Bank to sell other

than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire (ategory

would be tainted and reclasified as available for sale. Ihese include lreasury

Bills, Treasury Bonds and 6overnment Stock.

iv) Available-for-sale

Avoiloblelor-sole investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite

period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes

in interest rates or exchanqe rates. Purchases and sales of financial asets

at fair value through profit or loss, held t0 maturity and available for sale are

recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Bank commits t0 purchase or

sell the aset. Loans are recognised when cash is advanced t0 the borrowers.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transadion c0sts f0r

all financial assets not canied at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial

assets have expired or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership.

AvailableJor-sale financial asets and financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and

held{o-maturity inve(ments are carried at am0rtised cost using the effective

interest method. 6ains and losses arising from chanqes in the fair value ofthe

financial asets at fair value through profit or loss category are included in the

slatement 0f (0mprehensive income in the year in which they arise. 6ains and

loses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial

assets are recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is dere(ognised

or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or los previously recognised in

equity should be recognised in profit or loss. However, interest calculated using

the effective interest method is recognised in the statement ofcomprehensive

income.

(v) ldentification and measurement of impairment of

finandal assets

At each statement offinancial position date the Bank asesses whether there is

objective evidence that financial assets n0t carried at fair value through profrt

or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence

demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition 0f the

asset, and that the los event has an impad on the future cash flows on the

asset than can be estimated reliably.

The Bank considen evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and

collective level, All individually signifrcant financial assets are asesed for

specific impairment. All significant assets found not to be specifrcally impaired

are then r0llectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not

yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are then collectively

assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets ((arried at

amortised cost) with similar risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SIAIEMENTS FOR THT VEAR ENDED 51st DECEMBER 2O1O ....(CoNIinucd)

0bjective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are

impaired can include default or delinquency by a borrower, restru(turing

of a loan or advance by the Bank 0n terms that the Bank would otherwise

not consider, indications that a bonower or isuer will enter bankruptcy, the

disappearance of an active market for a security,0r other obserrlable data

relating to a group of asets such as adverse changes in the payment status 0f

bonowen or isuers in the qroup, or economic conditions that (orrelate with

defaults in the group.

ln asessing collective impairment the Bank uses statisti(al modelling of

historical trends of the probability of default, timing 0f recoveries and the

amount of los incurred, adjusted for management's judgement as t0 whether

current e(0n0mi( and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely

to be greater or les than suggested by historical modelllng. Default rate, loss

rates and the expe(ted tlming of fulure recoveries are regularly benchmarked

against actual 0ut(0mes t0 ensure that they remain appropriate.

lmpairment losses on assets canled at amortised cost are measured as the

difference between the iarryinq amount ofthe financial asets and the present

value ofestimated cash flows discounted at the assets'0riginal effective interest

rate. Losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and

reflected in an allowance account again$ loans and advances. Interest 0n

the impaired asset (ontinues to be recognised through the unwinding of the

discount.

When a subsequent event (auses the amount oflmpairment loss to detrease,

the impairment los is reversed through the statement of comprehensive

income.

lmpairment loses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by

transferring the difference between the amortised a(quisition cost and cunent

falr value out 0f equity t0 the statement of comprehensive income. When a

subsequent event rauses the amount of impairment los on an available-for-

sale debt se(urity t0 decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the

statement of comprehensive income.

However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value ofan impaired available-

for-sale equity se(tlrity is recognised directly in equity. (hanges in impairment

provisions attribtltable t0 time rlalue are reflected as a comp0nent of interest

income.

(vi) Derecognition

The Bank derecognises a frnancial aset when the contractual rights to the cash

flows from the frnancial aset expire, or when it transfen the rights to receive

the contractual cash flows on the flnancial asset in a transartion in which

substantially all the risks and rewards ofownership ofthe financial aset are

llil
transfened. The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its (0ntra(tual

obligations are disrharged or cancelled or explre.

The Bank enters into transa(tions whereby it transfers assets recognised on

its statement of financial positi0n, btlt retains either all or substantially all of

the risks and rewards ofthe transfened assets 0r a portion ofthem. lfall or

substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are

not derecognised from the statement of financial position. Transfen of assets

with retenti0n ofall or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example,

securities lending and repurchase transactions.

(vii) lmpairment for non-financial assets

The carrying amounb 0f the Bankt non-financial asets are reviewed at ea(h

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf

any such indication exists then the assets'recoverable am0unt is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised ifthe carrying amount ofan asset or its cash-

qeneratinq unit exceeds its recoverable am0unt. A cash-generating unit is the

smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are

independent from other assets and groups. lmpairment loses are recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income. lmpairment losses recognised

in respect of cash-generating units are allocated frrst to reduce the carrying

am0unt 0fany goodwill allocated t0 the unlts and then to reduce the carrying

amount ofthe other assets in the unit (group ofunits) on a pro-rata basis,

5. FINANOAT RISK MANAGEMENT

Principles

Postbank faces various types of risks which arise from its day t0 day operati0ns as

a financial instituti0n, The Board 0f Direct06 and Manaqement therefore devote a

significant p0rtion 0f their time t0 the management of these risks. The mainstay of

effective risk management is the identification ofsignificant risks, the quantification

ofthe Bankls risk exposure, actions to limit risk and the constant m0nitoring of risk.

The overarching aim of risk management is to ensure that all risks assumed in the

course ofthe Bank's business are recognized early on and mitigated by effective

risk management. Succesful risk management is recognized as a pre-condition for

the sustained growth and succes of the Bank. Risk management and monitoring

are implemented via the Bankt risk management and risk control proces and the

0rganizati0n structure c0rresp0nds to prudent Risk Management 6uidelines.

In order to ensure c0ntinuous improvement of risk management at all times the

following key risk principles have been adopted and are applied;

The Board of Direct06 assumes the ultimate responsibility for the level of risks

taken by the Bank and is responsible to oversee the effective implementation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5lst DECEMBER 2010 ....(Conrinued)

ofthe risk strategies.

The organizational risk structure and the functions, tasks and powers of the

employees, committees and departments involved in the risk processes are

continuously being reviewed to ensure cla rity oftheir roles a nd responsi bil ities.

Risk isues are taken into consideration in all business decisions. Measures

are in place to develop risk-based performance measures and this is being

supplemented by setting risk limits at the overall Bank and divisional levels,

as well as by enforcing (0nsi(enl 0perating limits for individual busines

a(tivities.

Risk management is increasingly being linked to management proceses such

as strategic planning, annual budgeting and performance measurement.

ldentified risks are reported in a transparent and timely manner and in full to

the responsible senior management.

Appropriate and effective controls exist for all proresses entailing risks.

All these principles are enshrined in the Bank's risk management policy. The section

below provides the various risks faced by the Bank and describes the methods used

by management to control risk. lhe most imp0rtant types of frnancial risks t0 whi(h

the Bank is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk mainly interest risk

and operational risk.

(i) Credit risk

fredit risk is the cunent or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an

obligort failure t0 meet the terms of any (ontract with the bank or if an obligor

otherwise fails to perform as agreed,

llil
Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a loan / security balance (and any related allowances for

impairment loses) when management determines that the advances / securities

are uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such

as the oc(urrence 0f significant changes in the bonower financial position such that

the borrower can no longer pay the 0bligation, 0r that pro(eeds from collateral will

n0t be sufn(ient t0 pay back the entire exposure.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the cunent or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from

the institution's failure t0 meet its maturing obligations when they fall due without

incurring unacceptable loses.

Ihe Bank's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will

always have suffcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal

and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable loses or risking damage

to the Bank! reputation. Ihe Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are

raised mainly from deposits.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the Bank for managi ng I iquidity risk is the ratio of net I iquid

asets to deposits from cust0me6. For this purpose net liquid asets are considered

as including cash and cash equivalents and investment serurities for which there

is an actitle and liquid market less any deposits from banks, other bonowings and

r0mmitments maturing within the next m0nth.

Management of credit risk

The Bank is sublect t0 credit risk through its lending and investing activities.

(onsiderable resou(es, expertise and controls are devoted to managing it and

comprehensive strategies, policies and procedures have been developed to

effectively manage this risk.

Ihe Bank's primary exposure t0 (redit risk arises through its advances to employee

and Visa credit t0 customers. The amount of credit exposure in this regard is

represented by the carrying amounts of the assets 0n the statement of financial

position. The Bank is also exposed to credit risk on debt investments. Ihe current

credit exposure in respect ofthe instruments is equal t0 the carrying amount ofthese

assets in the statement offinancial position.

The risk that counterparties t0 instruments might default 0n their 0bligations is

monitored on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of credit risk, the Bank deals

with counterparties ofgood credit standings and obtain collateral.

(iii) Market risk

Management of market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate and foreign

exchange rates will affect the Bank's income 0r the value of its holdings of financial

instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control

market risk exp0sures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

on risk.
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NOIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VIAR ENDED 5IsT DECEMBER 2O1O ....(ConTiNUCd) ll
Exposure fo inferesf rafe risk
The principal risk to which frnancial assets and liabilities are exposed is the risk of

los from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instrument

because ofa change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally

through monitoring interest rate gaps.

(iv) Operationolrisk
Ihe Bank's objective is to manage 0perati0nal risk so as to balance the avoidance of

financial losses and damage t0 the Bank's reputation with overall tost effettilleness

and to avoid control procedures that restri(t initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and lmplementation 0f (0ntr0ls t0

address operational risk is assigned to senior management within each busines

unit. The responsibility is supported by the development of overall Bank $andards

for the management of operational risks. Compliance with these standards is

supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit. The

results ofinternal audit reviews are discused with the management 0fthe business

unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Board Risk (ommittee

and senior management ofthe Bank.

Risk measuremenf and confrol
lnterest rate, credit, liquidity, operational risk and other risks are actively managed

by independent risk control qroups t0 ensure compliance with the Bankb risk policy.

The Bank s risk exposure limits are assessed regularly to ensure their appropriatenes

given the Bank's objectives and strategies and current market condltions.

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
(a) REVALUATION

A revaluation ofthe bank's assets was done in October 2009 by HighlandsValuen

Ltd. The main purpose ofthe revaluation exercise undertaken by the bank was to

determine the value ofthe bank's assets. The effective date 0fthe revaluations in the

books is lanuary 2010.

The basis ofthis valuation for property i.e buildings was on depreciated (urrent (ost

ofreinstatement, income capitalization method and comparison approach. In regard

t0 vehirles and loose assets i.e. equipment and furniture, the values were based on

depreciated market values or'second hand valuesi For specialised items like motor

vehicles, qualifled m0t0r assess06 were engaged while for electronic equipments,

the services ofan electronic engineer were hired.

The bank has used the Revaluation and depreciating model for Land and Buildings

while for all other classes ofassets, Cost and depreciating model has been applied

as per IAS 16.

(b) PROPERTY AND EQU!PMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Leasehold properties for which the lease has 99 years or m0re t0 run are stated at

cost or valuation and are not depreciated.

Postbank House, and other buildings are stated and depreciated at revalued amounts

as per the valuati0n report done in 0oober 2009

0ther assets are stated and depreciated at cost.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, at rates estimated to write offthe

assets over their expected useful lives.

The following depreciotion rotes are used:
(ategory Rate P.a.

Buildings )50/o

Show stands )0.00/0

Motor vehicles 25.00/o

Furniture and fittings 1).5V0

Electronic offlce equipment 2000/o

Non-electronic offrre equipment 12.50

[omputer hardware 20.00k

[omputer software 20.0V0

7. SToCKS
Stocks comprise ofstati0nery and drugs which are valued at cost.

8. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Foreign currency transacti0ns during the year were converted into Kenya sh lling

equivalent at rates ruling at the transacti0n date. Assets and liabilities at the

statement of Financial p0siti0n date which are expressed in foreign currency

are translated into Kenya shillinqs at the rates ruling at the transacti0n date. The

resulting differences from conversion and translation are dealt with in the profit and

loss account in the year in which they arise.

9. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The (ontributi0ns made by the Bank both to the Defrned Benefit and Defined

[ontribution retirement scheme and to the Provident Fund are charqed t0 the proflt

and loss account in the year 0ft0ntribution.

10. PROVISION TOR DOUBTFUT DEBTS

Provision is made on debtors that are considered t0 be doubtful. Bad debts are

written off when all reasonable steps to recover them have been taken without

su((ess.

1 1. BANK AND CASH

[ash on Hand

(ash at Bank

2010

lGhs.

330,193,898

385,534329

2009

f,shs.

424,419,522

262,228,719

715,728,227 ffi6,U8,24"1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR IHE VEAR ENDED 5lst DECEMBER 2010 ....(Conrinued) lil
12. INVESTMENT IN TREASURY BIttS & BONDS

East African Development Bank Bonds

Barclays Bank of Kenya medium term note

Kengen lnfrastructure Bond

Funds under management (5lMS)

Government of Kenya T Bond under lien

Government of Kenya lreasury Bonds

13. FUNDS ON CAtt AND SHORT NOTICE

Funds on call and short notice

l4. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Quoted investments

Unquoted investment

lnvestment in property

12,0N,r61,749 10,075,321,034

2010

lGhs

22,000,000

38,'t00,000

477,700,W

3,878,361,749

50,000,000

7,542,2N,000

2009

Kshs

44,000,000

38,100,000

477,740,000

2,242,871,034

50,000,000

7,222,650,000

2010

IGhs

9,741,025

2010

lGhs

2,055,637

13,540,000

27,390,225

20(x)

lGhs

309,741,025

20(x,

Kshs

2,055,637

13,5,10,000

273n,225

42,995,ffiz 42,995,952

Less: Provision for diminution in market

value of quoted /unquoted investments 12,987,037 13,350,3.l 3

29,9,8,825 29,635,549

(i) Quoted investments were valued at Kshs.1,254,600 (2009 Kshs 891,325) using the stock market price for the same category. Thus an appreciation in market value

of Kshs 361,276

(ii) Unquoted investment represents 8070 ofdeposits in [ity Finan(e Bank (]amii Bora Bank) converted into shares following their restru(uring in year 2000.

iii) Investment in property represents a piece ofland with a building taken over from Thabiti Finance Ltd in lieu ofdeposits held forthe Bank. Title to the pr0perty is in

dispute with the current 0((upant 0fthe premises claiming allotees interest absolutely.Ihe matter is in court and the Bank expects a favourable outcome since it

has a vesting riqht in the property and is holding it with an intention of selling 0r reinvesting.

g
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NOTES IO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51sr DECEMBER 2010 ....(Continued) ll
15. AC(OUNTS RE(EIVABIES AND PREPAYMENTS

Postal Corporation of Kenya

KP&T(

Accrued interest

Directors Loans

Staff loans

Staff debtors - Personal Development Loan

Staff lmprest

Visa [ard debtors

MTS lrade Debtors

Stocks of stationery & drugs

ATM settlement Account receivables

Fixed deposits in ailing financial institutions

Commission Receivable from GoK

Pension Receivable from GoK

Prepaid GoK Pension - P(K Payroll

GoK Pension Cheques Receivable - P(K

Premium on lreasury Bonds (Prepaid)

Refunds due from Bill and Mellida Gates Foundation

0ther Receivables and Prepayments

2010

Kshs

1,136,696,132

405,231,629

206,996,660

9,U9,137

550,879,568

177,724,883

7,071,484

134,352,712.16

9,537,762.64

24,51 1,888

6,168,900

540,409,141

65,666,900

272,479,227

469,909,260

268,553,1 58

365,798,025

3,494,857

1,145,194,516

20(x,

IGhs

1,066,267,341

4fr5,231,629

200,251,381

11,795,579

494,926,782

157,5M,902

5,259,430

135,506,331

21,948,323

24,472,479

1,749,250

540,409,141

25,765,200

222,479,227

293,715,3M

744,019,613

90,624,193

677,819,090

5,750,325,8/m 4,515,789,235

Provision for bad and doubtful debts:

Trade Debtors

Amounts due from subsidiary and deposits

in ailing financial institutions

(151,273,750) (723,3s8,781],

(540,409,',t41) (668,252,820)

4,858,il2,949 3,224,177,614

Ihe ailing flnanrial institutions refer to those institutlons placed under statutory management of tBK (receivenhip and in liquidation). Accrual of interest on KP&I(

exces deposits was suspended with effect from July 2005.

a,
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NOTES TO THt FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5lsr DECEMBER 2010 ....(Continued) ll,l
16. DEFERRED ASSET

2010

Xshs

153,998

2009

lGhr

153,998Balance brou ght forward

Receipts from Treasury

Balance canied forward 153,99E 153,998

This amount represent accumulated losses which by virtue of section 1i (1) of the Kenya Post 0ffice Savings Bank Act (ap 493B are recoverable from the [entral

Government Consolidated Fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51sf DECEMBER 2010 ....(Conrinued) lil
17. (b) tAND AND BUITDINGS

COST OR VATUATION

Kshs

Long-term leasehold

Short-term leasehold

Land

Kshs

650,000,000

25,000,000

Buildings

(shs

1,01 7,000,000

75,000,000

ShowShnd

lGhs

6,500,000

2010

Total

lGhs

1,667,000,000

106,500,000

2009

Total

794,687,699

57,000,000

675,000,000 1,092,000,000 6,500,000 1,773,500,000 851,fi7,5yt

lncl uded in short-term leasehold land and buildings is a property purchased in Mombasa. lt is valued at Kshs. l 00 million subject to extension of lease period by another 45 yean

from the current 10 yean. Procedures towards extension ofthe lease are in progress.

The frgures used in the fixed assets schedule relate to 2009 valuation report carried out by Highlands valuen Ltd and approved by the Board in 20'10

18. A((OUNTS PAYABTES AND A(CRUAIS

Trade creditors

PCK Services rendered- 0SS

PCK Encashed Wanants Payable

Transitorial Accounts - Postbank

Transitorial Accounts - Pension Wanants (P(K)

Transitorial Accounts - GoK Payroll (PCK)

0ther creditors and accrued charges

2010

IGhs

86,209,338

468,936,993

462,078,751

417,464,611

170,953,266

560,691,797

899,380,1 89

2009

lGhs

77,902,762

441,381,793

462,078,751

42,487,464

170,953,266

786,453,817

568,438,250

3,M5,714,945 2,519,6%,10'

P(K Services rendered- 055 refers t0 am0unt payable to Postal (orporation of Kenya for services offered to our regular customers for normal banking services.

PCK Encashed warrant payable refers to amount claimable by Postal Corporation of Kenya on disbunement of pension to pensioners.

Iransitorial ac(ount is a holding account for money held by the Bank and PtK on behalfofthird party pending disbursement.

g
SGS Annual Report & F nanc a Statements 2010 33



NOIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51sT DECEMBER 2OIO ....(CoNTiNuCd) lil
19. CUSTOMERS'SAVINGS AND DEPOSIT A(COUNIS

Postbank Savings Account

Bidii Savings Account

Bidii Plus Account

JuniorTrust Account

Step Account

Pension accounts (BSG)

Premium Savings Scheme

Premium Plus Account

Fixed Deposit Account

Save-As-You-Earn

Staff Salary Account

Salary Account

Postbank Junior Account

Non Scheme Account

Corporate (lients

Pamoja Chama Account

20. BEARER BONDS

Amount

13,415,060,359 10A52,810,924

2010

lGhs

5,217,377,899

1,468,352,522

5,209,305

6,916,362

'142,438,318

1,431,937,865

873,464,710

3,481,266,936

1 67,61 3,830

348,794,515

77,814,301

114,044,763

,10,498,356

4,291,184

29,016,56s

6.022.928

2009

Kshs

5,339,737,422

948,476,119

4,951,308

3,473,941

57,361,389

1,167,279,720

848,126,216

1,441,369,655

1 59,069,053

291,159,211

42,561,393

94,599,579

28,125,523

(2,730,1491

40,138,939

281.605

2010

Kshs

220,002,615

2009

l(shs

220,002,615

Ihese were collections from the public for sales of Bearer Bonds on behalfof(entral Bank ofKenya (tBK).Ihe funds were banked in Postbank (redit Limited (PtL) for onward

transmission to the (BK.

PCL was closed and put under liquidation by the (entral Bank of Kenya 0n 20th May 1 993 before the money was paid over t0 the latter The amount will be paid over to the

(BK once these are received from the Liquidator.
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NOTES IO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51st DECEMBER 2010 ....(Conrinued) tlt
21. FEES & C0MM!SS!0NS

Account maintenance fees/Led ger fees

Salary crediting fees

[ontinuation fees

Premature withdrawal fees

Maintenance fees

Withdrawal fees

Visa fees

Card fees

MTS- lnbound & lntrabound commission

Statement (harge

Closure Fee

Upcountry Cheque Deposit (harge

Postage Fee

Commission from Higher Education Loans Board

(itibank commission

Pension commission

Miscellaneous fees & commission (others)

I 22. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

r 3,852,19'.I

M7,780

18,255,033

51,000

59,477,036

1 2,81 2,180

35,843,028

80,104,701

583,1 39

517,281

4,707,736

362,250

448,200

4,707,866

82,693,101

117,420,630

2009

Kshs

38,584

17,528,297

965,386

15,623,416

(216,300)

45,401,041

17,232,523

42,005,248

n,263,716

550,107

1,711,377

3,419,943

818,941

686,702

2,590,385

72,583,280

109,237,631

20r0

Kshs

432,282,854 420459,277

Rental income- notional

Rental lncome- 0ther

Dividend income

Write back on Provision

lnterest on bank accounts

Bonus from Western Union

Realised gain on sale of Forex

Consultancy fees -(Lesotho Project)

Agency based commission

Tender fees

Appreciation/Diminution in value of quoted investments

Gain on sale of Property & Equipment

Sundry income

2010

Kshs

20,563,770

27,510,430

46,698

943,670

102,389

34,M2,2n

15,823,216

6,.1 0 1,600

6,475,732

239,s00

363,276

2fi!9

Kshs

20,5$,770

21,154,629

9,935

3,540,492

114,771

3,202,500

10,794,813

750,800

1,073,066

2,656,500

6,075

634,700

699,3866,105,745

g
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NOTES TO THI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5Ist DECEMBER 2O1O ....(CONtiNUCd) lll
23. INTEREST EXPENSE

lnterest on:-

Postbank Savings Accounts

Bidii Savings Account

Bidii Plus

Step Account

Pension Account

Premium Savings Account

Premium Plus Account

Fixed Deposit Account

Save As You Earn Account

Staff Salary Account

Salary Account

Postbank Junior Account

Pamoja Account

24. OTHER EXPENSES

Directors fees

Printing and stationery

Debt collection

Postage & telephone

Computer expenses

MotorVehicle Expenses

Audit fees

Donations and subscriptions

Legal and professional fees

Electricity and water

Cleaning and Sanitation

Special Projects Launching

Newspapers and Periodicals

Transportation (osts

Procurement (osts

Miscellaneous expenses

Financial expenses

Selling expenses

0perating Stationery

Bonus & Prizes

Write offs & Charge offs

ATM processing charges

ATM card cost

Research & Development

2010

1,925,575

1,094,983

379,154

31,898

2009

49,895,959

22,905,055

15,732

1,102,949

KshsKshs

50,423,1 10

30,N2,254

82,765

1,466,086

409

24,926,997

1 95,1 30,459

5,076,272

26,856,477

68,323,535

4,958,920

5,098,854

506,651

764,928

170,950

83

310,839,962 180,600,092

2010

Kshs

3,1 1 6,648

13,647,598

1,269,749

55,748,754

7,1 05,655

6,781,565

3,000,000

2,270,323

4,629,833

26,122,461

8,s02,094

20,029,1 85

309,1 69

185,226

378,972

66,029

25,856,771

1 1 1,1 99,502

2,788,674

674,498

2fl19

lGhs

2,3M,264

9,231,301

l,'180,376

49,565,051

4130,703

12,426,393

3,000,000

3,763,491

4,987,809

24,315,216

10,.l81,670

53,520

I 38,252

368,000

22,511,624

78,81 1,430

6,090,855

479,855

977,460

11,549,442

2,963,248

10,000

13,535,985

10,584,046

248.,122,020

36

317,802,737
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5lsr DECEMBER 2010 ....(Continued) llt
25. OPERATING TEASE EXPENSES

5ecurity expenses

lnsurances

0ffice rent

Land rent and rates

Repairs and maintenance

Service charge

Agency fees - PCK/0thers

Licences

Grounds maintenance

Aqency Expansion Prqea(WSBI)

26. IMPAIRMENT IOSS ON TOANS AND ADVANCES

Visa card debtors

Corporate Scheme

0S5 Scheme

| 27. PR0F|T (t05S) FoR THE YEAR

The profit (los) for the year is stated after charging:

Directors fees

Audit fees

Depreciation

Provident fund contribution

Pension scheme contribution

Diminution in value of quoted investments

and after crediting: -

Dividends

Appreciation in value of quoted investment

2010

Kshs

82,946,801

12,765,738

71,840,945

4,321,396

64,273,018

10,356,380

40,193,177

9,406,391

477,422

2,417,030

2009

Kshs

80,31 1,819

11,497,326

75,571,071
.l,1 

1o,1oo

58,307,W7

11,097,426

45,180,662

13,607,787

30,419

298,998,288 296,714A57

2010

IGhs

2,356,470

10,000,000

I 0,000,000

2009

lGhs

1,924,309

76,897,441

42,789,2ffi

22,356,470 121,611,016

2010

2,096,648

3,000,000

164,242,771

2,877,144

121,934,024

46,698

363,276

20t)9

2,386,264

3,000,000

1 39,990,071

33,130,427

151,324,877

8,835

6,075

lGhsKshs

969 AnnualReport&Fnancla Statements 2010 27



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 51st DECEMBER 2O1O ....(CONTiNUCd) lll
28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENTS

Bank and cash balances (net)

Deposits in banks and Financial lnstitutions

Treasury Bills and Bonds

Forthe purposes ofthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents referto: -

1. Bank and cash balances net of bank overdraft.

2. Deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions

3. Treasury Bills, treasury and (orporate bonds as at the balance sheet date.

29.INTEREsT INCOME

lnterest on Treasury Bills/Bonds

lnterest on P(K balances

lnterest on Staff Loans

lnterest on Visa balances

30. EMPTOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries and Wages

Pensions and Provident Fund contr

Travel and Subsistence allowances

Medical expenses

Staff training

0ther staff expenses

12,733,831,001 1 1,071,710,300

2010

lGhs

115,728,227

9,741,025

12,008,361,749

2009

lGhs

686,648,241

309,741,025

10,075,321,034

2010

Kshs.

1,732,648,687

g,76g,6oo

29,081,02)

16,654,008

20(x,

lGhs.

1,3M,985,390

14,088,771

33,ffi,459

16,309,203

1,7W,152,317 1,359,031,823

2010

Kshs.

814,899,32.|

143,480,385

60,127,101

39,285,309

10,055,804

79,787,449

2009

lGhs.

1,068,365,24',|

214,929,475

94,177,320

59,896,854

11,632,897

71,809,290

1,519,811,077

38

1,147,635,369
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NOTES TO IHE FINANCIAL STATTMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 5lsf DECEMBER 2010 ....(Continued) lrfl
31. CONTINGENT TIABILITIES

(i) Kenya Post Office Savings Bank Employees Pension Trust Fund

An actuarial valuation ofthe Bank's funded Defined Benefrt Pension Trust Fund as at 31st December 2006 was canied out by Alexander Forbes Financial Services

(EA) Llmited. The report by the a(tuaries revealed a past service deficit of Kshs.467.9 million as at 3lst December 2006. Though the Bank has converted to a Defined

Contribution pension scheme, the defined benefit scheme cann0t be (losed until the above defi(it has been paid in full by the employer, the pension fund sponsor

(ii) KP &T( ftarges for Services Rendered

The KP&T[ was claiming Kshs.35, 240,661.18 owing as at 30th June 1999 (at the time it split into Telkom (K) Ltd, (ommunication Commission of Kenya and Postal

(orporation of Kenya). The provision in the a(counts then was Kshs 14, 868,291.35. No provision has been made in these accounts for the difference (Kshs.20,

372,370.45) as discusions are in progres to resolve the dispute and the directors are ofthe opinion that the Bank will obtain a favourable result.

32. CAPITAT COMMITMENTS

2010

lshs

g,247,ggg

200,

[dB
7,W,Ty

2fi71,%5

Authorised and contracted for

Authorised but not contracted for

[apital Commitmenb relate to advertisement, computer software and renovati0n of branches.

8)47,9d) 9X8r,699

39scs Annual Report & Financial Statements | 2010



CJ

e
.E
E

oe
I
o
E

z
E
o

E

=oE

E
g

d

.9

o
E
c

A
.!a

E

E
E
s
Eo
oc
=
vi

-!
!

E

E
E
e

'=

o

E
c
o

--

E

-
o
'=

@
Eo

ovl
a
\q
a
@

o_

6€€-
N

a-
oN
N

oo

6-
o-

o
O

o_

s
o_
O
9_
.1

o_
I

6_

@_
6
a_

"1

o
6_o6-
o6

o

66-

dl
o
d1
a

O
6_O
@-

6

o
Na

o

6

6

N
N

N

o

€€

o
oo6€

o

6

o

+-
€

Id6
o

6

e
t,

E
r

J
!o

o
q
q
4
E
E
o

=3.9J
6
o

F

E
eo
E
.E

G
I

6

6

6

6

@

oo
o

6-
oo-
o

d

E
c
o

6

o€-
o\

O€-
o:

o

E
G

e

.9

oI

o
.1
oao-

<-

o
6
6
@-

6

N
6
6

o
o_

a

o-

5

o

c€
o6

=-e
@9

d U
-L

@

O.
O-

@

s

6
6

€€
N€o
o

o
€€
@
€

ao
N

@

I€

o
o
N

@

o
@
O

=o

=oo
o
Ee

=5

E
o

(U

6'
o,

OE

=tE
IE

(U

4t
I'E

ao

tf
or
o
\o
o
rC)
tl
Ch

tf

6tfo

CA

o\o
@€€

o
€tf6
€o

tl
CA

tf+

$
\o

€

tf(
€

o6
+
$

\Ct
tf
tt(,

+

oN6
o-
@
€-

ad
@-

o
@'
€-

oor

oo\

o

@-

66
6_

6
6_

O.

o_

@

o
O

ooo

a

O
O
O

o

O

oao-
o

s_
6-

@_

a_
o

oao

ao

Ooo-
ooO.
O

.1

@'

6_O

o

o

€o

a
1
o\
a

E
o

o

6
o

6
@_

@

:
o6
+
I
E

'-
c
E

-

.1

3
6

E

6

o,

P
E>'=
E
c
=U
!s
C
o
o6Eoo

EV
od
\J€

:O

o=5:
N:

a
l4J Xco=
=3_lal o(r,.=
t! .=a= -5uoL
FOL)E

lal E

z.=
lrJ 

=4,P
rd=\=7o
Irl >
F=
4,Eo:GE
v\i
Lz=
la,l .9

=.=lrJ n
F.=

t\ .E
J=

=-:Z !a z,

EE;-rEAE
.''! 

= 
6tre,E

tr 
- 

a
t4JJ=
l-..9Ornqz. tYl -

o_

6_

@

G

iF
I

Eo

E

oo
d6

E

c

E
o

.:2
o

o

oc

otE o
€ lri
sE
6S

o|!

E.?t\E

O@

E('

\o

8€
!!E
e_E
E€
16G

8€
=EEE
!aEE-E

1E
E

EE
G=

=
!to

l!

=

|!
ot

c,
o

|I'
o

I
scsAnnual Repon& [ nanclal statemenr 20']0



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THt VEAR ENDED 51st DECTMBER 2010 ....(Conrinued) llil
34. C0N50UDATIoN

Consolidated Accounts are not prepared as the bank's wholly owned subsidiary, Postbank Credit Limited, is under liquidation.

35. TAXATION

Kenya Post Office Savings Bank is exempt from (orporation Tax under Income Tax Act Cap 470 ofthe laws of Kenya.

36. COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform t0 reporting under IFRS,

37. EMPIOYEEs

The average number of employees during the year was 786 (2009 -l 1 29).

scs Annua Report& Finan(ial Staternents | 2010 11



NETWORK OF POSTBANK BRANCHES

Head Office Branch

Postbank House

Market Lane Off Banda Street,

P 0. Box3031 1 00100 Nairobi

lel )5 4 10 D)9551 Fax 254 20 22981 6

Market Branch

Postbank House

Market Lane behind I & M building Off Banda Street,

P 0, Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Tel: 254 20 229551 Fax.25420341562

(ustomer 5ervice (enter

Standard House,6round Floor

Kenyatta Ave.,

P 0. Box 3011 1 00100 Nairobi

lel254)025169617 Fax:254 20 2105

Kikuyu Branch

Sisters Building, Kikuyu

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Iel: 254 060 31630

Far 254 06033712

Ngara Branch

Pioneer House, Ngara Road

P 0. Box 3011 1 00100, Nairobi

Iel2542037M837

Fax. 254 20 37 44837

Westlands Branch

Soin Arcade, Westlands

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Iel: 254 20 4440581

Far 254 20 4450965

Ruiru Branch

Finance House, Ruiru

P 0. Box 190, Ihika

Tel: 254 067 54320

Fax.254067 55441

Wabera Branch

Standard House

Ground FloorWabera 5t.,

P 0. Box 3031 1 00'100 Nairobi

Iet.)54 )0 )5169617 Fax 254 20 210593

Canon House Branch

(anon House Haile Selasie Ave.

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

lel254 20 229551 Fax.254 20 342662

Affa (enter Branch

Afia (enter House,

Tom Mboya Streel

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Tel:254 20 22955'l tax:254 20 31 1735

Kenyatta Market Branch

Phigaco Building,Kenyatta Market

P 0. Box 3031 l,Nairobi

Iel 254 20 27 19582 Fax )54 )0 27 317 60

Karen Branch

Karen Shopping (enter

P 0. Box 303'l 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel: 254 20884547 Fax: 254 20884548

Iom Mboya Branch

Emperor Building,Tom i/boya 5treet

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel:254 20 229551 Fax:254 20 230428

Githurai Branch

Winma Plaza,6ithurai

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel:254 20 813868

Far 254 20 81 i032

Uthiru Branch

Uthiru Post0ffice,

Nairobi- Naivasha Road

P 0. Box 1031 1 00100, Nairobi

le|.25420 631927

Far 254 20 631 19

Mwingi Branch

Mwingi / Garisa Road

P 0. Box 510 Mwingi

Tel: 254 44 822308

Fax:)54 44il)308

Eastleigh Branch

2nd Avenue Eastleigh

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel: 254 20 6763843

Fax:254 20 6761892

Ngong Branch

Ngong Branch, Masaai Sprlngs

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Iel: 254 045 41047 Far 254 045 41048

Ronald Ngala Branch

Ronald Ngala Post Office,

Ronald Ngala Street

P 0. Box 301'l 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel:254 20 229551 Fax:254 20 2250140

Enterprise Branch

Enterprise Road Post Office, lndustrlal Area

P 0 .Box 3031 1 00'100, Nairobi

Tel:254 20 22955'l Fax 254 20 550870

Kitui Branch

Hospital Road,

P 0. Box 668 fftui

Iel)54 \tA 4422993 Fax.254 044 M2304$

Jogoo Road Branch

Trafalga Plaza, Jogoo Road

P 0. Box 3031 1 0010, Nairobi

Tel: 254 20 551441 Fax 254 20 552021

Wote - Makueni Branch

tuli Building,

P 0. Box 944, Wote

Tel: 254 044 33171 Far 254044 33388

Limuru Branch

Ushirika Center

P 0. Box 170 Limuru

lel.25406671293

Fax25406672278

Thika Branch

Nduriri House,

P 0. Box 1 81 9 Thika

Iel: 254 067 31 193

Fax.254067 30076

Kiambu Branch

St. James [athedral, Kiambu

P 0. Box 145 Kiambu

Tel: 254 066 22913

Fax25406622914

Garissa Branch

Garisa Shopping Center

P 0. Box 745 Garissa

Tel: 254 046 2169

Fax'.2540463194

Machakos Branch

Stone l(athuli,

P 0, Box 1031 1 00100 Machakos

Tel: 254 044 20261 Fax 254 044 24112

0ngata Rongai Branch

Kins Arcarde, Ongata Rongai P 0. Box

3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel: 254 045 24178 Fax254 045 14178

Kibwezi Branch

Mbinda Building, Kibwezi

P 0. Box 3031 1 - 00100, Nairobi

Tel:254 044 3500422 tax:254044

3500432

Athi River Branch

0ld Town AthiRiver

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

1e1.25404522526 Far 254045 22518

Kangundo Branch

Kanqundo Town

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Tel: 254 ()44621 150 Fax 254044 621 148

Emali Branch

Mombasa Highway,

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Iel: 25 4 20 2445 4% Fax. )5 4 20 2M54cX

Karuri Branch

Spikes House

P 0. Box 303 1 1 001 00, Nairobi

Tel:254 066 51683

Fax 254 066 51685

Matuu Branch

Main Street, Matuu

P 0. Box 1031 1 00100, Nairobi

Iel: 254 067 4355282

Fax:254067 4355283

Dandora Branch

Dandora Phase Three

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel: 254 20 2803527;254202405489

Fax: 254 20 2405489

Adams Arcarde Branch

Urhumi 5upermarket, Ngong Road

Tel: 254 020 210i547

Mlolongo Branch

Ndile House, lr/lolongo

P 0. Box 3031 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel: 254 20 244549 1 Fax. )54 20 2M5491

Kajiado Branch

0pp.Municipal Market

P 0. Box 303'i 1 00100, Nairobi

Tel:254 20 2455105

Viwandani Branch

Viwandani Post Office,

Llkoni Road, lndustrial Area

P 0. Box 3031 I 00'100, Nairobi

lel. )54 20 229551 Far 254 20 553356

Nacico Branch

Nacico Plaza, Landhies Rd

P0.Box 3031 1 00100 Nairobi

Iel: (+254) 020-23451 34 /
lSDN:020 2801155

Kenyafta Avenue Branch

Standard House, Ground Floor

Kenyatta Avenue.

P0.Box 303 1 1 00100, Nairobi

Iel )5400)5169617

g
42 Annual Report& [inanc al 5tatements 2010 scs



NEIWORK OF POSTBANK BRANCHES ....(Conrinued) l
m

Kerugoya Branch

Kibetu Plaza Building

P 0. Box 1020, Kerugoya

Tel: 254 060 21893

Fax: 254 060 21833

Embu Branch

Waumini House, Ngara Road

P 0. Box 1245, Embu

Tel: 254 068 30740

Fax25406830127

Meru Branch

Lucy Plaza,

P 0. Box 3270, Meru

Tel: 254 064 30381

Fax:25406420575

Chaani Branch

(haani Post Office Building,

P 0.8ox 90563, Mombasa

Iel:254041 434077

Fax:254041 434071

Ukunda Branch

Siku Njema Plaa, LungaLunga

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Iel: 254 040 3203248

Fax 254 040 3203248

Voi Branch

Sagalla lnve(ment Building, Voi

P 0. Box 452 Voi.

Tel: 254 043 30253

Far 254 043 30253

Kilifi Branch

Kilifi Shopping Arcade, Kilif,

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Iel: 254 041 522i99

Nanyuki Branch

Kiangina Distributors Building

P 0. Box 416, Nanyuki

Iel254062il210

Fax: 254 062 32820

Muranga Branch

Para 5ingh Building

P 0. Box 122 Muranga

Tel: 254 060 31083

Fax 254 060 31084

Nyeri Branch

Kanqaru (orner House

P 0. Box 246, Nyeri

Tel: 254 061 2034348

Fax 254 061 2032189

Likoni Branch

King Fisher Euilding, Likoni town

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Tel:254041 2451070

Fax:)54041 )451071

Mombasa Branch

5avani House, Mombasa

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Iel:254041 )314424

tax:)54041 D)3771

Moi Avenue Branch

Postbank House, Moi Avenue,

Mombasa

P 0. Box 90561, Mombasa

Tel: 254 041 2230969

Fax254041 2230945

Karatina Branch

(aratina Town

P 0. Box 246 Nyeri

Iel254061 72537

Fax.254 061 72977

Chuka Branch

Rhea Plaza, (huka

P 0. Box 616, thuka

Tel: 254 064 630443

Fax 254 064 630063

Wanguru Branch

Jasper Plaza, Wanguru

P 0. Box 153-10303Wanguru

Tel: 020 352 4329

Malindi Branch

Malindi Business (omplex

P 0. Box 5196, Malindi

Tel: 254 042 30599

Far 254 042 30600

Mtlvapa Branch

[4ombasa - Malindi Road

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Tel 254 041 5486939

tar 254 041 5486470

Kisauni Branch

Burhanyia Bohra Building

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

lel 254 041 47 4333

Fax:254041 474333

Mariakani Branch

Mrs. Shariif Building,

Mariakani

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Tel: 254 041 33425

Fax 254 04'l 33430

Taveta Branch

Taveta

P 0.80x 90563, Mombasa

Tel: 254 041 5352228

tax:254041 5352124

Watamu Branch

Waumu Richland athe

Junction of Jacaranda Bay

Resort/Watamu Beach

Hotel Road

P 0. Box 90563, Mombasa

Tel: 254 041 200 1 1 1 5

Fax:254041 5352124

Maua Branch

lrlaua Town,

Tel: +254-064-21 150

lsiolo Branch

Mashalla House,

lsiolo Town

Iel: +254 -064-il4t)
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NETWORK OF BRANCHES AND SUB-BRANCHES ....(Conrinued) ll
Nakuru Branch

Postbank House,Kenyatta Ave,,

P 0. Box 4199 Nakuru

Tel: 254 051 2215165

Far 254 051 2216687

Naivasha Branch

Secheki House, Naivasha Rdad

P 0. Box 675 Naivasha l

Tel:254050 2021335 I

Narok Branch

0lerorat House, Narok Town

P 0. Box 634 Narok

Tel: 254 050 22030

Far 254 050 22425

Eldoret Branch

Postbank House,

P 0. Box 2770, Eldoret

Iel: 254 053 2062295

Far 254 053 2063025

Kisumu Branch

Tivoli (enter, Kenyatta Street

P 0. Box 183 Kisumu

Tel: 254 057 2023955

Far 254 057 2021358

Kakamega Branch

Kakamoni House

P 0. Box 2444, Kakamega

Tel: 254 056 30630

Fax: 254 056 31069

Bungoma Branch

Beadon House, Moi Ave.

P 0. Box 2200, Bungoma

Tel: 254 055 30419

Fax:254 055 30319

HomaBay Branch

Luore Plaza, Homabay Town

P 0. Box 203 Homabay

Tel:254059 21466

Fax 254 05922389

Bomet Branch

lvlain Street, Bomet

P 0. Box 778 Litein

lel25405222439

Fax:25405222M0

Kapsabet Branch

Koita, Kapsabet

P 0. Box 800 Bomet

Tel: 254 053 52583

Far 254 053 52535

Molo Branch

Maziwa House, Molo

P 0. Box 41 91 Molo

Iel:25405'l 721561

Fax)54051 721097

Kabarnet Branch

Mwalimu Plaza,

P 0. Box 442 Kabarnet

Iel: 254 053 2354

Fax: 254 053 21 1 30

Busia Branch

Amukura House, Busia Town

P 0 Box l83, Ktsumu

Tel: 254 055 22278

Fax25405522157

Mumias Branch

Mumiaslown

P 0 Box 183, Khumu

Iel: 254 056 641410

Fax 254 056 641410

Siaya Branch

5iaya Shopping Mall

P 0. Box 375 Siaya

Tel: 254 057 32 1 2 1 1

Fax: 254 057 321213

Kisii Branch

0nchoke Hse, Hospital Road

P 0. Box 740 Kisii

Tel: 254 058 30800

Fax: 254 058 30341

Kericho Post 0ffce

Posta Plaza, Kericho

P 0. Box 1011 Kericho

Tel: 254 052 30378

Fax 254052 121'15

Nandi Hills Branch

l,/arket Street, Nandi Town

P 0. Box 32'1 Nandi Hills

Tel: 254 053 643146

Fax: 254 053 643225

Kitale Branch

Gian Singh Eiashal House,

P 0. Box 82, Kiule

Iel: 254 054 31297

Fax2545430394

Gilgil Branch

Disney (ompute6 House,

Tel: 254 050 4002'143

Fax 254 050 4002144

Webuye Branch

lakatha House

P 0. Box 1041, Webuye

Tel: 254 055 41027

Fax 254 055 14026

Suna Migori

(ool Plaa, Migori

P 0. Box 1059 lsebania

Tel: 254 059 20034

Far 254 059 20036

Sare Awendo Branch

Ganqo House, Awendo

Tel: 254 059 43419

lax:)54059 43429

Luanda Branch

Equator Building, Luanda Town

P 0. Box 859, Luanda

Tel: 254 057 351231

Fax: 254 057 35 1 231

Narok Branch

Narok - Nairobi Road, Rorati Building

P 0. Box 22030 Narok

Tel: 254 050 22030

Fax 254 050 22050

Kapenguria Branch

Iel: 254 054 261 1 886

Kapenguria

Nyahururu Branch

Hekima House,

Iel:254 065 3225 1

Nyahururu.

Lodwar Branch

Tel No:020 - 2149541

Lodwar.

Eldama Ravine Branch

Iel:Q0-)149767

Eldama Ravine

Keroka Branch

Keroka Town

P 0. Box 138 Keroka

Iel: 254 058 520037

Far 254 058 520037

Kehancha Branch

Kehancha Town

P 0. Box 
'1 
38 Keroka

lel254726278100

Nyamira Branch

Nyamira Branch

Kisii - Nyamira Hlghway

P0 Box 364-40500

Nyamira

Mbale Branch

Tel: 0726822238

Mbale.
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P0$B[lllt Postbank Head Office: ISDN:020-28O3OOO 020-2229551/6 Fax 020-243930 P.O Box 3031 1-00100, Nairobi, Kenya

PostbankHelpDeskTel: +2540202803333/341/350/248,2248886,0716918999,0734856353,info@postbank.co.keYour banking mode eosier.


